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JOHN DAVID LEFEBVRE,
S1 07 Cr. 0597 (PKC)
Defendant.

COUNT ONE

The United States Attorney charges:

1. From in or about June 1999, up through and
including in or about January 2007, in the Southern District of
New York and elsewhere, JOHN DAVID LEFEBVRE, the defendant, and
others known and unknown, unlawfully, willfully, and knowingly
did combine, conspire, confederate, and agree together and with
each other to commit offenses against the United States, to wit,
to violate Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1084, 1955,
1956 (a) (2), and 1960.

2. It was a part and an object of said conspiracy
that JOHN DAVID LEFEBVRE, the defendant, and others known and
unknown, being engaged in the business of betting and wagering,
unlawfully, willfully, and knowingly would and did use a wire
communication facility for the transmission in interstate and
foreign commerce of bets, wagers, and information assisting in
the placing of bets and wagers on sporting events and contests,

and for the transmission of wire communications which did entitle
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the recipient to receive money and credit as a result of bets and
wagers, and for information assisting in the placing of bets and
wagers, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section
1084.

3. It was further a part and an object of said
conspiracy that JOHN DAVID LEFEBVRE, the defendant, and others
known and unknown, unlawfully, willfully and knowingly would and
did conduct, finance, manage, supervise, direct, and own all and
part of various illegal gambling businesses, namely, internet
gambling companies doing business in New York in violation of New
York State Penal Law, Article 225, in violation of Title 18,
United States Code, Section 1955.

4, It was further a part and an object of the
conspiracy that JOHN DAVID LEFEBVRE, the defendant, and others
known and unknown, unlawfully, willfully and knowingly would and
did transport, transmit, and transfer monetary instruments and
funds from a place in the United States to and through a place
outside the United States and to a place in the United States
from and through a place outside the United States with the
intent to promote the carrying on of specified unlawful activity,
to wit, the operation of illegal gambling businesses in violation
of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1955, the illegal
transmission of wagers and gambling information, in violation of

Title 18, United States Code, Section 1084, and the commission of
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gambling offenses, in violation of New York State Penal Law,
Article 225, in violation of Title 18, United States Code,
Section 1956.

5. It was further a part and an object of the
conspiracy, from in or about October 2001 up through and
including in or about January 2007, that JOHN DAVID LEFEBVRE, the
defendant, and others known and unknown, unlawfully, willfully
and knowingly would and did conduct, control, manage, supervise,
direct, and own all and part of an unlicensed money transmitting
business that transferred funds within the United States and to
locations abroad on behalf of the public by means of wire, check,
draft, facsimile, and courier, which funds were known to LEFEBVRE
to have been derived from a criminal offense and were intended to
be used to promote and support unlawful activity, to wit, illegal
internet gambling, and thereby affected interstate and foreign
commerce, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section
1960.

Overt Acts

6. In furtherance of said conspiracy and to effect
the illegal objects thereof, the following overt acts, among
others, were committed in the Southern District of New York and
elsewhere:

a. In or about August 1999, JOHN DAVID LEFEBVRE,

the defendant, began working with Stephen Eric Lawrence to found
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a group of businesses (the “NETeller Group”) to provide online
payment services to internet gambling businesses and to customers
who wished to wager with such businesses.

b. Beginning in or about July 2000, and
continuing up to in or about December 2003, LEFEBVRE and others
affiliated with the NETeller Group offered online payment
services through NETeller Inc., a Canadian corporation, to
various internet gambling businesses located outside of the
United States so that these businesses could access customers
located in the United States, including customers located in and
around Manhattan.

c. Beginning in or about January 2004, and
continuing up to in or about January 2007, LEFEBVRE and others
affiliated with the NETeller Group offered online payment
services through NETeller PLC, a corporation based in the Isle of
Man, to various internet gambling businesses located outside of
the United States so that these businesses could access customers
located in the United States, including customers located in and
around Manhattan.

d. From in or about July 2000, and continuing up
to in or about January 2007, LEFEBVRE and others affiliated with
the NETeller Group regularly transferred and transmitted funds
from customers located in the United States, including customers

located in and around Manhattan, to various internet gambling
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businesses located outside of the United States, by means of wire

transfer.
(Title 18, United States Code, Section 371.)

FORFEITURE ALLEGATION

7. As the result of committing the gambling, money
laundering, and unlicensed money transmitting offenses alleged in
Count One of this Information, defendant JOHN DAVID LEFEBVRE
shall forfeit to the United States pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §8§

981 (a) (1) (C), 982 and 1955(d) and 28 U.S.C. § 2461, all property,
real and personal, involved in the money laundering and
unlicensed money transmitting offenses and any property,
including money used in the gambling offenses, and all property,
real and personal, that constitutes or is derived from proceeds
traceable to the violations of 18 U.S.C. §§ 371, 1084, 1955,
1956, and 1960, including but not limited to, at least $100
million dollars in United States currency.

Substitute Asset Provision

a. If any of the above-described forfeitable
property, as a result of any act or omission of the defendant:

(1) cannot be located upon the exercise of due
diligence;

(2) has been transferred or sold to, or deposited with,

a third person;
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(3) has been placed beyond the jurisdiction of the
Court;

(4) has been substantially diminished in value; or

(5) has been commingled with other property which

cannot be subdivided without difficulty;
it is the intent of the United States, pursuant to 21 U.S.C.

§ 853 (p) and 18 U.S.C. § 982 (b), to seek forfeiture of any other
property of said defendant up to the value of the above
forfeitable property, including but not limited to the following
real properties:

(1) 25030 Malibu Road, Malibu, California, legally
described as Lot: 1, Block: 47, Page: 5 in the City of Malibu,
County of Los Angeles, State of California; and

(2) 25150 Malibu Road, Malibu, California a/k/a "25152"
Malibu Road, Malibu, California, legally described as Lot: 10,
Track: 12939, in the City of Malibu, County of Los Angeles, State
of California, as per map recorded in Book 263, Pages 39 and 40
of Maps, in the office of the County Recorder of said county.

(Title 18, United States Code, Sections 371, 981, 982, 1084,

1955, 1956, 1960 and Title 28, United States Code, Section
2461 (c)) .

m
MICHAEL J. GARCIA
United States Attorney
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